# TOMAHAWK HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT HANDBOOK 2021-22



#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Foreword

Mission & Vision of the School District of Tomahawk

Equal Education Opportunity/Anti-Harassment

Sexual Harassment

**Bullying** 

**Student Hazing** 

Section 504/ADA Complaint

School Day

Student Rights and Responsibilities

Student Well-Being

Injury and Illness

### **SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION**

Scheduling and Assignment

Early Dismissal

Student Accidents/Illness/Concussion

**Counseling Department Services** 

**Nursing Services** 

Use of Prescribed Medications

Use of Nonprescribed Drug Products

**CBD** Products

Direct Contact Communicable Diseases

Students With Disabilities

Service Animals and Other Animals on School Property

Students With Limited Language Proficiency

Student Records

**Armed Forces Recruiting** 

Student Fees, Fines and Charges

Student Fund-Raising

Student Valuables and Lockers

Meal Service

Fire Drills, Tornado Drills, Lockdown Drills

**Emergency Closings and Delays** 

Preparedness for Toxic and Asbestos Hazards

**Visitors** 

Library Media Center

**Student Sales** 

Open Campus Privilege (Juniors/Seniors)

Use of Student Telephone

Use of Cell Phones or Personal Communication Devices

Weapons

Advertising Outside Activities

Video Surveillance

Safety and Security

### **SECTION II - ACADEMICS**

Academic and Career Planning

Field Trips

College Visits

Student Technology Acceptable Use Policy

Student Assessment

Grade Reporting

Class Status

Graduation

Class Rank

Honor Roll

**Scholarships** 

### **SECTION III - STUDENT ACTIVITIES**

School Sponsored Clubs and Activities

School Sponsored Publications and Productions

### **SECTION IV - STUDENT CONDUCT**

Attendance

**Student Behavior** 

**Drug Abuse Prevention** 

Use of Tobacco/Nicotine Prohibited

Student Code of Classroom Conduct

Other Forms of Discipline

Suspension and Expulsion

Search and Seizure

Student Rights of Expression

**Dress and Grooming** 

Care of Property

Student Due Process Rights

### **SECTION V - TRANSPORTATION**

**Bus Transportation** 

**Bus Conduct** 

Penalties for Bus Infractions

Vehicles and Parking

### **APPENDICES**

Tomahawk High School Faculty

Class Advisors

Class Officers

Student Council Executive Board

#### SCHOOL DISTRICT OF TOMAHAWK

1048 E. Kings Road Tomahawk, WI 54487

#### **Foreword**

This student handbook was developed to answer many of the commonly asked questions that you and your parents may have during the course of a school year. This handbook summarizes many of the official policies and administrative guidelines of the Board and the District. To the extent that the handbook is ambiguous or conflicts with these policies and guidelines, the policies and guidelines shall control. This handbook is effective immediately and supersedes any prior student handbook.

Because the handbook also contains information about student rights and responsibilities, each student is responsible for knowing its contents. Please take time to become familiar with the following information and keep the handbook available for you and your parents' use. It can be a valuable reference during the school year and a means to avoid confusion and misunderstanding when questions arise. Should you have any questions that are not addressed in this handbook, contact your high school administration or the appropriate department. You will find it listed in the Staff Directory section of the handbook. This handbook supersedes all prior handbooks and other written or oral statements regarding any item in this handbook.

This handbook summarizes many of the official policies and administrative guidelines of the Board and the District. If any of the policies or administrative guidelines referenced herein is revised after June 30, 2021 the language in the most current policy or administrative guideline prevails. The current policies and guidelines are available on the District's website.

#### Mission & Vision of the School District of Tomahawk

### Vision:

Empowering all students to be socially responsible, life-long learners in an ever changing world.

#### Mission:

The School District of Tomahawk will become the district of choice, known for its high levels of student achievement, the excellence of its programs, and its sound stewardship.

- Student understanding will be fostered through a rigorous, coordinated curriculum that embraces global perspectives and best instructional practices, including relevant applications of current technologies.
- Meaningful relationships among students, staff and community members will be the foundation for student successes.
- Coordinated efforts between the school and community will effectively meet the social, emotional and academic needs of the whole child and every child.

### **Equal Education Opportunity/Anti-Harassment**

It is the policy (Policy 2260) of the District to provide an equal education opportunity for all students. The right of a student to be admitted to school and to participate fully in curricular, extra-curricular, student services, recreational or other programs or activities shall not be abridged or impaired based on the traits of sex (including transgender status, change of sex, or gender identity), race, color, national origin, religion, creed, ancestry, marital or parental status, sexual orientation or physical, mental, emotional or learning disability, or any other characteristic protected by Federal or state civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as "Protected Characteristics") or other protected characteristics as well as place of residence within District boundaries, or social or economic background.

Students who have been identified as having an impairment or disability under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act or the Americans with Disabilities Act shall be provided with appropriate educational services. Parents who have questions should contact the Director of Pupil Services at (715) 453-2126 ext. 405.

It is also the policy (Policy 5517) of the District to maintain an educational environment that is free from all forms of harassment. This commitment applies to all District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of harassment. This policy applies to conduct occurring in any manner or setting over which the Board can exercise control, including on school property, or at another location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board.

The Board will not tolerate any form of harassment and will take all necessary and appropriate actions to eliminate it, including suspension or expulsion of students and disciplinary action against any other individual in the School District community. Additionally, appropriate action will be taken to stop and otherwise deal with any third party who engages in harassment against our students.

Any person who believes that the Tomahawk High School or any staff person has discriminated against them in violation of these policies may file a complaint. A formal complaint can be made in writing to a District Compliance Officer listed below:

Ryan Huseby, Principal Wendra Simonis, Pupil Services Director

High School School District of Tomahawk

(715) 453-2106 (715) 453-2106

husebyr@tomahawk.12.wi.us simonisw@tomahawk.k12.wi.us

The complaint procedure is described in Board Policies 2260 and 5517. The policies are available on the District's web page.

Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of harassment, time lines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. Once the complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) calendar days of the complaint being received).

If at any time during the investigation process the investigator determines that the complaint is properly defined as Bullying, under Policy 5517.01 - Bullying, and not harassment under Policy 5517, because the conduct at issue is not based on a student's Protected Characteristics, the investigator shall transfer the investigation to the appropriate building principal.

Under no circumstances will the District threaten or retaliate against anyone who raises or files a complaint.

Tomahawk High School is committed to an educational environment that is free of harassment of any form. The school will not tolerate any form of harassment and will take all necessary and appropriate action to eliminate it, including suspension or expulsion of students and disciplinary action against any other individual in the School District community. Additionally, appropriate action will be taken to stop and otherwise deal with any third party who engages in harassment against our students.

Harassment means behavior toward a student or group of students based, in whole or in part on the traits of sex (including transgender status, change of sex, or gender identity), race, color, national origin, religion, creed, ancestry, marital or parental status, sexual orientation or physical, mental, emotional or learning disability, or any other characteristic protected by Federal or state civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as "Protected Characteristics which substantially interferes with the student's school or academic performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive school environment. Harassment may occur student-to-student, student-to-staff, staff-to-student, male-to-female, female-to-male, male-to-male, or female-to-female. Examples of conduct that may constitute harassment include:

- A. graffiti containing offensive language;
- B. name calling, jokes or rumors;
- C. threatening or intimidating conduct directed at another because of the other's protected characteristic (e.g., sex, race, learning disability);
- D. Notes or cartoons;
- E. Slurs, negative stereotypes, and hostile acts which are based upon another's protected characteristic;
- F. Written or graphic material containing comments or stereotypes which is posted or circulated and which is aimed at degrading individuals or members of protected classes;
- G. A physical act of aggression or assault upon another because of, or in a manner reasonably related to, the individual's protected characteristic; or
- H. Other kinds of aggressive conduct such as theft or damage to property, which is motivated by a protected characteristic.

#### **Sexual Harassment**

Sexual harassment deserves special mention. Sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually motivated physical conduct or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature when:

- A. Submission to that conduct or communication is made a term or condition, either explicitly or implicitly, of obtaining an education; or
- B. Submission or rejection of that conduct or communication by an individual is used as a factor in decisions affecting that individual's education; or
- C. That conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an individual's education, or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive educational environment.

Sexual harassment examples include, but are not limited to:

- A. Repeatedly asking a person for dates or sexual behavior after the person has indicated no interest:
- B. Rating a person's sexuality or attractiveness;
- C. Staring or leering at various parts of another person's body;
- D. Spreading rumors about a person's sexuality;
- E. Letters, notes, telephone calls or materials of a sexual nature;
- F. Displaying pictures, calendars, cartoons or other materials with sexual content;
- G. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another; or
- H. remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own sexual activities or sexual history.

It is also the policy of the School that a sexual relationship between staff and students is not permissible in any form or under any circumstances, in or out of the school, in that it interferes with the educational process and may involve elements of coercion by reason of the relative status of a staff member to a student. An inappropriate boundary invasion by a District employee or other adult member of the School District community into a student's personal space and personal life is sexual harassment.

If you wish to report harassment, please contact the District's Title IX Coordinator listed below:

Wendra Simonis
Pupil Services and Special Education Director/Title IX Coordinator
1048 E King Road
Tomahawk, WI 54487
(715) 453-2126 ext. 405
simonisw@tomahawk.k12.wi.us

Any person may report sexual discrimination, including sexual harassment, to the District's Title IX Coordinator listed above, regardless of whether the person is the alleged victim of the reported conduct. The report may be made in person, by mail, by telephone, or by email. The report may be made at any time, including during non business hours.

A copy of the Board's Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy 5517, including the reporting, investigation, and resolution procedures, is available in the school office and on the District's website. Board Policy 5517 – Student Anti-Harassment, as well as the Board's Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy both contain the complaint procedures and steps for investigating complaints under these policies.

Any person who is unsure about how to submit a complaint of discrimination, harassment, or sexual harassment is encouraged to immediately contact one of the listed Compliance Officers, the Title IX Coordinator, an administrator, or any trusted member of the staff for assistance in filing a complaint.

Retaliation against a person who files a complaint is prohibited by Board policy and Federal law. Any allegation of retaliation should be filed immediately with assurance that it will be taken seriously and fully investigated by the District.

### **Bullying**

Bullying is defined as a person willfully and repeatedly exercising power or control over another with hostile or malicious intent. Bullying can be physical, verbal, electronically transmitted, psychological (e.g., emotional abuse), through attacks on the property of another, or a combination of any of these. Examples of bullying include:

- A. Physical hitting, kicking, spitting, pushing, pulling, taking and/or damaging personal belongings or extorting money, blocking or impeding student movement, unwelcome physical contact.
- B. Verbal taunting, malicious teasing, insulting, name calling, making threats.
- C. Psychological spreading rumors, manipulating social relationships, coercion, or engaging in social exclusion/shunning, extortion, or intimidation.
- D. "Cyberbullying" the use of information and communication technologies such as e-mail, cell phone and pager text messages, instant messaging (IM), defamatory personal websites, and defamatory online personal polling websites, to support deliberate, repeated, and hostile behavior by an individual or group, that is intended to harm others.

All complaints about aggressive behavior that may violate this policy shall be promptly investigated. If the investigation finds that aggressive behavior has occurred, it will result in prompt and appropriate discipline, co-curricular sanctions and/or disciplinary action up to and including suspension or expulsion. Individuals may also be referred to law enforcement officials. (Board Policy 5517.01)

#### **Student Hazing**

Hazing activities of any type are inconsistent with the educational process and may in some circumstances be a violation of State law. The Board prohibits all such activities at any time in school facilities, on school property, and at any District-sponsored activity or event.

Hazing is defined as performing any act or coercing another, including the victim, to perform any act of initiation into any class, group, or organization that causes or creates a risk of causing mental, emotional, or physical harm. Permission, consent, or assumption of risk by an individual subjected to hazing shall not lessen the prohibitions contained in this policy.

If hazing or planned hazing is discovered, the students involved shall be informed by the discoverer of the prohibitions contained in this policy and shall be ordered to end all hazing activities or planned activities immediately. All hazing incidents shall be reported immediately to the Principal or to the District Administrator.

Students who fail to abide by this policy may be subject to disciplinary action and may be held personally liable for civil or criminal penalties. Disciplinary action for students may include, but is not limited to, suspension and/or expulsion. [Policy 5516]

### **Section 504/ADA Complaint**

Any person who believes that the Tomahawk High School or any staff person has discriminated against them in violation of the District's Section 504/ADA Policy 2260.01 may file a complaint. A formal complaint can be made in writing to a District Compliance Officer listed below:

Wendra Simonis
Pupil Services and Special Education Director/Title IX Coordinator
1048 E King Road
Tomahawk, WI 54487
(715) 453-2126 ext. 405
simonisw@tomahawk.k12.wi.us

The complaint procedure is described in 2260.01 and is available on the District's website.

#### **School Day**

The academic year calendar can be found on the District website. Listed below is the standard bell schedule for the high school. Special schedules may be utilized for early release, late start, or special events.

2021-22 Bell Schedule		
Period	Start	End
1	8:00	8:50
2	8:54	9:42
3	9:46	10:34
4	10:38	11:26
5A Lunch	11:26	11:56
5A Class	11:30	12:18
5B Lunch	12:18	12:48
5B Class	12:00	12:48
6	12:52	1:40
7	1:44	2:32
Resource Hour	2:36	3:15

#### **Student Rights and Responsibilities**

The rules and procedures of Tomahawk High School are designed to allow each student to obtain a safe, orderly, and appropriate education. Students can expect their rights to freedom of expression and association and to fair treatment as long as they respect those rights for their fellow students and the staff. Students will be expected to follow teachers' directions and obey all school rules. Disciplinary procedures will comply with the requirements of State and Federal law. Parents have the right to know how their child is succeeding in school and will be provided information on a regular basis and as needed, when concerns arise. Many times it will be the responsibility of the student to deliver that information. If necessary, U.S. mail or hand delivery may be used to ensure contact. Parents are encouraged to build a two-way link with their child's teachers and support staff by informing the staff of suggestions or concerns that may help their child better accomplish his/her educational goals.

Students must arrive at school on time, prepared to participate in the educational program. If, for some reason, this is not possible, the student should seek help from the high school office.

#### **Student Well-Being**

Student safety is a responsibility of the staff. All staff members are familiar with emergency procedures such as fire, tornado, and emergency intruder drills and accident reporting procedures. Should a student be aware of any dangerous situation or accident, s/he must notify a staff person immediately.

All students must have emergency medical information completed, signed by a parent or guardian, and filed in the school office. Students with specific health care needs should submit those needs, in writing and with proper documentation by a physician, to the school office.

#### **Injury and Illness**

All injuries must be reported to a teacher or to the office staff. If minor, the student will be treated and may return to class. If medical attention is required, the office will follow the School's emergency procedures.

A student who becomes injured or ill during the school day should request permission from the teacher to go to the office. The office staff will determine whether the student should remain in school or go home. No student will be released from school without proper parental permission. (Board Policy 5340)

#### **SECTION I - GENERAL INFORMATION**

#### **Scheduling and Assignment**

Schedules are provided to each student at the beginning of the school year or upon enrolling. The schedule is based upon the student's needs and available class space. Any changes in a student's schedule should be handled through the Guidance Office. It is important to note that some courses may be denied because of limited space or the need to complete prerequisites courses. Students are expected to follow their schedules. Any variation should be approved with a pass or schedule change.

### **Early Dismissal**

No student will be allowed to leave school prior to dismissal time without a verbal, written request signed by the parent/guardian or the parent coming to the school office to request the release. No student will be released to a person other than a custodial parent(s) or guardian without a permission note signed by the custodial parent(s) or guardian. (Board Policies 5200 and 5230)

### **Student Accidents/Illness/Concussion**

The School District believes that school personnel have certain responsibilities in case of accidents, illness, or concussions that occur in school. Said responsibilities extend to the administration of first aid by persons trained to do so, summoning of medical assistance, notification of administration personnel, notification of parents, and the filing of accident reports. (Board Policy 5340)

### **Counseling Department Services**

Upon entering high school, students should become acquainted with their counselor. Counselors can be very helpful to students in making high school course selections, social adjustments and in learning school routines. Counselors can also be the first source of information about career selections, school choice, financial aids, employment opportunities and job requirements. Students are welcome to talk with their counselor about personal concerns, social problems, or academic difficulties. Ideally, students will schedule an appointment during study hall or before school starts in the morning. Students must present a pass to the counseling secretary prior to reporting to the counseling office.

### **Nursing Services**

The School District of Tomahawk provides nursing services. The nurse will be available every day from 7:45a.m. until approximately 3:15pm. Students who wish to see the Nurse must report to their scheduled class and obtain a pass from the Instructor to report to the office. Office staff will check the availability of the Nurse and provide the student with a pass to the Nurse's office. Students may not report to the Nurse without a pass from the Office. The Nurse will provide the student with a pass to return to their scheduled class or to return to the Office. If it is necessary for the student to go home, the Nurse or Office staff will make arrangements with the Parent/Guardian. The student must sign out in the Office prior to leaving the building.

#### **Use of Prescribed Medications**

In those circumstances where a student must take prescribed medication during the School day, the following guidelines of Board Policy 5330 are to be observed.

- A. Parents should, with their physician's advice, determine whether the medication schedule can be adjusted to avoid administering medication during school hours.
- B. The Medication Request and Authorization Form must be filed with the Principal before the student will be allowed to begin taking any medication during school hours. The forms are

available in the School office.

- All medications to be administered during school hours must be registered with the nurses office.
- Medication that is brought to the nurses office will be properly secured.
- Medication may be conveyed to school directly by the parent.
- For each prescribed medication, the container shall have a pharmacist's label with the following information:
  - o student's name;
  - o practitioner's name;
  - o date:
  - pharmacy name and telephone;
  - o name of medication;
  - o prescribed dosage and frequency; and
  - o special handling and storage directions.
- Medication MAY NOT be sent to school in a student's lunch box, pocket, or other means on or about his/her person, except for emergency medications for allergies and/or reactions.
- Any unused medication unclaimed by the parent will be destroyed by School
  personnel when a prescription is no longer to be administered or at the end of a
  school year.

A log for each prescribed medication shall be maintained which will note the personnel giving the medication, the date, and the time of day. This log will be maintained along with the physician's written request and the parent's written release.

### **Use of Nonprescribed Drug Products**

Possession, administration, and use of nonprescription drug products shall be in accordance with Board Policy 5330.

• Staff and volunteers will not be permitted to dispense non prescribed drug products to any student without written parental consent.

The Nonprescription Drug Product Request and Authorization Form must be filed with the school nurse before the student will be allowed to begin taking any medication during school hours.

For each nonprescription drug product, the container shall be the original manufacturer's package and the package must list in a legible format the ingredients and recommended therapeutic dose.

The parents request to administer a nonprescription drug product shall contain the following information:

- A. student's name;
- B. date;
- C. name of medication;
- D. dosage and frequency; and
- E. special handling and storage directions.

If a student is found using or possessing a non prescribed drug product without parent authorization, s/he will be brought to the school office and the parents will be contacted for authorization. The medication will be confiscated until authorization is received.

Any student who distributes a medication of any kind to another student or is found to possess a medication other than the one authorized is in violation of the school's Code of Conduct and may be disciplined in accordance with the drug-use provision of the Code.

#### **CBD Products**

In accordance with Board Policy 5330, students and parents are reminded of the following regulation regarding CBD product use, possession, and distribution on District property or at school activities:

Lawful, Hemp-derived CBD products may be stored at school in a specific location, in its original packaging and allowed for self-administered use under the supervision of school staff and subject to appropriate physician's certificate and parent/guardian documentation.

#### **Direct Contact Communicable Diseases**

In the case of non casual-contact communicable diseases, the school still has the obligation to protect the safety of the staff and students. In these cases, the person in question will have his/her status reviewed by a panel of resource people to ensure that the rights of the person affected and those in contact with that person are respected. The school will seek to keep students and staff in school unless there is definitive evidence to warrant exclusion. (Board Policy 8453)

Non Casual-contact communicable diseases include sexually transmitted diseases, AIDS (Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome), ARC-AIDS Related Complex, HIV (Human Immunodeficiency Virus), Hepatitis B, and other diseases that may be specified by the Wisconsin Department of Health Services.

As required by Federal and State law, parents may be required to have their child's blood checked for HIV and HBV, and other blood-borne pathogens when the child has bled at school and students or staff members have been exposed to the blood. Any testing is subject to laws protecting confidentiality.

#### **Students With Disabilities**

The American's with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act provide that no individual will be discriminated against on the basis of a disability (Board Policy 2260.01). This protection applies not just to the student, but to all individuals who have access to the District's programs and facilities.

A student can access Special Education services through the proper evaluation and placement procedure. Parent involvement in this procedure is generally required. More important, the school encourages parents to be active participants. To inquire about Special Education programs and services, a parent should contact the Director of Pupil Services at (715) 453-2126 ext. 405. (Board Policy 2460)

The District is committed to identifying, evaluating, and providing a free appropriate public education ("FAPE") to students within its jurisdiction who are disabled within the definition of Section 504, regardless of the nature or severity of their disabilities.

#### **Service Animals and Other Animals on School Property**

Students, parents, and other members of the public may be accompanied at school by a service animal in accordance with Federal and State law and Board Policy 8390. Other animals permitted in schools and elsewhere on District property shall be limited to those necessary to support specific curriculum-related projects and activities as approved by the principal.

• An emotional support animal is not granted the same access to school buildings and

- classrooms, as service animals. The District is not required to grant students' requests that they be permitted to bring an emotional support animal to classes or on school grounds for any purpose.
- Therapy dogs which meet the certification and documentation requirements in Policy 8390 may be allowed limited access to the schools to perform their educational purpose as determined by the District Administrator.

### **Students With Limited Language Proficiency**

The District recognizes that there may be students enrolled whose primary language is not English. The District provides appropriate identification and transition services for students who possess limited English language proficiency. The purpose of these services is to develop English language skills that will enable the students to function successfully in an all English classroom and complete the District's required curriculum. (Board Policy 2260.02)

To inquire about programs and services for students with limited English language proficiency, a parent should contact the Director of Pupil Services at (715) 453-2126 ext. 405.

#### **Student Records**

The origination and maintenance of appropriate student records are essential to the effective operation of the District and meeting the educational interests of students. The rights and responsibilities of students, parents and the District with respect to student records are governed by State and Federal law (Board Policy 8330). Many student records are kept by teachers, counselors, and administrative staff. There are two (2) basic kinds of student records - directory information and confidential records.

Directory information can be given to any person or organization when requested, unless the parents of the student object in writing to the disclosure as required under school policy and State and Federal law. Directory information is specified in Policy 8330 and includes a student's name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, photograph, major field of study, participation in officially recognized activities and sports, weight and height of members of athletic teams, dates of attendance, date of graduation, name of school most recently previously attended, and degrees and awards received. Directory information also includes a student ID number, user ID, or other unique personal identifier used by the student when accessing or communicating in a District's electronic systems, if, standing alone, it cannot be used to access student education records, (i.e. a pin number, password, or other factor is also needed).

If parents and eligible students do not submit such written notification to the District, directory information may be utilized by the District Administrator in District-wide publications, on the cable television educational access channel, or on the District's website. The directory information used will be properly verified and approved by the District Administrator.

Student records are generally considered confidential under State and Federal law and may not be released to third parties unless the student's parents consent in writing. However, there are exceptions to confidentiality, and requests for records within these exceptions may be granted without a parent's written consent. If you have questions about the confidentiality of student records and/or the release of student records to third-parties, consult the Board's Policy 8330 - Student Records

Parents and students are reminded of: 1) their rights to inspect, review and obtain copies of students records; 2) their rights to request the amendment of the student's school records if they believe the records are inaccurate or misleading; 3) their rights to consent to the disclosure of the student's school records, except to the extent State and Federal law authorizes disclosure without consent; 4) the categories of student record information which have been designated as directory information and

their right to deny the release of such information; and 5) their right to file a complaint with the Family Policy Compliance Office of the U.S. Department of Education.

Consistent with the Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA), no student shall be required, as a part of the school program or the District's curriculum, without prior written consent of the student (if an adult, or an emancipated minor) or, if an unemancipated minor, his/her parents, to submit to or participate in any survey, analysis, or evaluation that reveals information concerning:

- A. political affiliations or beliefs of the student or his/her parents;
- B. mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family;
- C. sex behavior or attitudes;
- D. illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating or demeaning behavior;
- E. critical appraisals of other individuals with whom respondents have close family relationships;
- F. legally recognized privileged and analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, physicians, and ministers;
- G. religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or his/her parents; or
- H. income (other than that required by law to determine eligibility for participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such a program).

Consistent with the PPRA and Board policy, parents may inspect any materials used in conjunction with any such survey, analysis, or evaluation. Please contact Director of Pupil Services, Wendy Simonis to inspect such materials.

Further, parents have the right to inspect, upon request, a survey or evaluation created by a third party before the survey/evaluation is administered or distributed by the school to the student. The parent will have access to the survey/evaluation within a reasonable period of time after the request is received by the building principal.

The District Administrator will provide notice directly to parents of students enrolled in the District of the substantive content of this policy at least annually at the beginning of the school year, and within a reasonable period of time after any substantive change in this policy. In addition, the District Administrator is directed to notify parents of students in the District, at least annually at the beginning of the school year, of the specific or approximate dates during the school year when the following activities are scheduled or expected to be scheduled:

- A. activities involving the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information collected from students for the purpose of marketing or for selling that information for otherwise providing that information to others for that purpose); and
- B. the administration of any survey by a third party that contains one or more of the items described in A through H above.

The Family Policy Compliance Office in the U.S. Department of Education administers both Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (PPRA). Parents and/or eligible students who believe their rights have been violated may file a complaint with:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW 20202-4605 Washington, D.C. www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco

Informal inquiries may be sent to the Family Policy Compliance Office via the following email addresses:

FERPA@ED.Gov; and PPRA@ED.Gov.

### **Armed Forces Recruiting**

The School must provide at least the same access to the high school campus and to student directory information as is provided to other entities offering educational or employment opportunities to those students. "Armed forces" means the armed forces of the United States and their reserve components and the United States Coast Guard.

If a student or the parent of a student submits a signed, written request (Form 8330 F13) to the Board that indicates that the student or the parent does not want the student's directory information to be accessible to official recruiting representatives, then the school officials of the school shall not allow that access to the student's directory information. The Board shall ensure that students and parents are notified of the provisions of the opportunity to deny release of directory information. Public notice shall be given regarding the right to refuse disclosure to any or all directory information including in the armed forces of the United States and the service academies of the armed forces of the United States. (Board Policy 8330)

If parents and eligible students do not submit such written notification to the District, directory information may be utilized by the District Administrator in District-wide publications, on the cable television educational access channel, or on the District's website. The directory information used will be properly verified and approved by the District Administrator.

Annually the Board will notify male students aged eighteen (18) or older that they are required to register for the selective service.

### Student Fees, Fines and Charges

Fees will be charged for some classes, co-curricular activities and District requirements. Students using school property and equipment can be fined for excessive wear and abuse. Late fines can be avoided when students return borrowed materials promptly. Their use may be needed by others.

Students must pay fees within the deadlines established. All cases of indicated financial assistance should be directed to school administration. The fine will be used to pay for the damage, not to make a profit.

Although fees and fines must be paid in full, we understand that in certain, limited circumstances, full and immediate payment of this fee may place a financial burden on families. In lieu of these circumstances, a payment plan can be put in place for your child. Be aware of feed payment deadlines. Ask the high school office for more information.

It is a school policy that students are not allowed to participate in the graduation ceremony until their fee obligations have been met. (Board Policy 5460)

### **Student Fund-Raising**

Students participating in school-sponsored groups and activities will be allowed to solicit funds from other students, staff members, and members of the community in accordance with school guidelines (Board Policy 5830). The following general rules will apply to all fundraisers.

• Students involved in the fund-raiser are not to interfere with students participating in other

- activities in order to solicit funds.
- A student will not be allowed to participate in a fund-raising activity for a group in which s/he is not a member without the approval of the student's teacher or counselor.
- No student may participate in fundraising activities off school property without proper supervision by approved staff or other adults.
- House-to-house canvassing by any student is not allowed for any fundraising activity.
- If the fundraising activity will involve students under age twelve (12) such students' parents must provide written permission for the student to participate in the fundraising activity. Any student under nine (9) years of age, or each group containing one (1) or more students under nine (9) years of age, must be physically accompanied by a parent or a person at least sixteen (16) years of age.
- Any fund-raisers that require students to exert themselves physically beyond their normal pattern of activity, such as "runs for .....", will be monitored by a staff member in order to prevent a student from overextending himself/herself to the point of potential harm.
- No student may participate in a fund-raising activity conducted by a parent group, booster club, or community organization on school property without the approval of the Principal.
- Fundraising by students on behalf of school-related organizations whose funds are not managed by the District may be permitted on school grounds by the District Administrator.

### **Student Valuables and Lockers**

Students are encouraged not to bring items of value to school. Items such as jewelry, expensive clothing, electronic equipment, and the like, are tempting targets for theft and extortion. The school cannot be responsible for their safe-keeping and will not be liable for loss or damage to personal valuables.

Personal belongings should be stored in your assigned school locker. The locker is to be used solely and exclusively for the storage of outer garments, footwear, and school related materials and no student should use the locker for any other purpose. You are expected to stay in the locker you are assigned to unless you are given permission to change lockers by the office. **KEEP YOUR LOCKERS LOCKED** in the hallway and locker rooms. **It is the student's responsibility to ensure that their personal belongings and school property are secured in school lockers.** It is strongly encouraged to have a combination lock for physical education and athletic events. Locks can be rented from your PE teacher if needed. Students will be responsible for upkeep and cleanliness of their assigned lockers. No permanent stickers will be allowed on or in the lockers. A cleaning cost will be assessed to students if lockers do not meet inspection requirements.

### **Meal Service**

The school participates in the National School Lunch Program and makes lunches available to students for a fee (Board Policy 8500). The school lunch program is the responsibility of Taher Food Services. Lunch accounts are managed by Taher and additional information regarding the program and account balances can be found on Skyward Family Access.

Applications for the school's Free and Reduced-Priced Meal program are distributed to all students (Board Policy 8531). Extra applications can be obtained in the school office.

### Fire Drills, Tornado Drills, Lockdown Drills

The school has a comprehensive School Safety Plan (Board Policy 8420) that includes specifications for fire drills, tornado drills, and lockdown drills.

The school complies with all fire safety laws and will conduct fire drills in accordance with State law. Specific instructions on how to proceed will be provided to students by their teachers, who are

responsible for safe, prompt, and orderly evacuation of the building.

Tornado drills will be conducted during the tornado season using the procedures provided by the State.

Lock down drills in which the students are restricted to the interior of the school building and the building secured may occur during the school year.

### **Emergency Closings and Delays**

If the school must be closed or the opening delayed because of inclement weather or other conditions, the school will use the following notification process:

Information will be communicated electronically through Skylert email and/or automated phone call. The use of District social media and website alerts will be used when appropriate. Information will be communicated on local TV stations and WJJQ as permitted. Parents and students are responsible for knowing about emergency closings and delays. (Board Policy 8220)

### **Preparedness for Toxic and Asbestos Hazards**

The School is concerned for the safety of students and attempts to comply with all Federal and State Laws and Regulations to protect students from hazards that may result from industrial accidents beyond the control of school officials or from the presence of asbestos materials used in previous construction. A copy of the School District's Toxic Hazard Policy and asbestos management plan will be made available for inspection at the District office upon request. (Board Policies 8431 and 8431.01)

#### Visitors

Visitors, particularly parents, are welcome at the School. In order to properly monitor the safety of students and staff, each visitor must report to the office upon entering the school to register and obtain a pass. Any visitor found in the building without a pass shall be reported to the Principal and/or law enforcement.

If a person wishes to confer with a member of the staff, s/he should call for an appointment prior to coming to the school, in order to prevent any loss of instructional time. Visitors' access to classrooms and instructional activities are subject to reasonable restrictions and limits. Please consult with the Principal regarding these restrictions. Students may not bring visitors to school. (Board Policies 7440 and 9150)

### **Library Media Center**

The purpose of the Library Media Center is to support the high school curriculum with a wide variety of materials including books, videotapes, periodicals, and the Internet. To encourage reading for pleasure, as well as for curricular classes, the LMC has a wide range of books both fiction and nonfiction. Students are encouraged to use the LMC for research, study and collaboration. Students are expected to follow LMC expectations and procedures to maintain the privilege of utilizing the space. Students will be accountable for all overdue and lost materials.

#### **Student Sales**

No student is permitted to sell any item or service in school without the approval of the school. Violation of this rule may lead to disciplinary action.

### **Open Campus Privilege (Juniors/Seniors)**

Open campus is a privilege available to all Juniors and Seniors during their lunch period. As with all privileges, this lunchtime option may be revoked if a student does not follow the guidelines

established to be a student in good standing. This privilege is granted to all Juniors and Seniors meeting the following criteria:

- Return and meet all requirements of the student/parent "open campus privilege" contract.
- Achieve junior status.
- Receive passing status in all courses for 6 week progress report and semester grading periods.
- Not be identified as a truant.
- Not receive more than one in or out of school suspension during the last grading period.
- Maintain appropriate behavior while off campus.
- Those that drive a vehicle to school must have a valid parking permit.
- Students utilizing open campus must leave school grounds for the duration of the lunch period. No loitering in the parking lot.

The loss of open campus privileges may be reinstated at the beginning of the next grading period if the student is reclassified as a student in good standing and has met all the above criteria.

Students exiting the building during open campus must use door 24 located in the High School cafeteria. Students must scan their ID with the cafeteria monitor before exiting the building.

### **Use of Office Student Telephone**

Due to student cell phone use policies during the school day, students may use the telephone located in the high school office with permission. Classroom phones may not be used by students.

#### **Use of Cell Phones or Personal Communication Devices**

Students may use personal communication devices (PCDs) before and after school, during their lunch break, in between classes as long as they do not create a distraction, disruption or otherwise interfere with the educational environment, during after school activities (e.g., extra-curricular activities), and at school-related functions. Use of PCDs, except those approved by a teacher or administrator, at any other time is prohibited and they must be powered completely off and comply with District and building policy.

However, technology including, but not limited to, PCDs intended and actually used for instructional purposes (e.g., taking notes, recording classroom lectures, writing papers) will be permitted, as approved by the classroom teacher or the building principal.

PCDs, with cameras or any other recording capabilities, may not be activated or utilized at any time in any school situation where a reasonable expectation of personal privacy exists. These locations and circumstances include, but are not limited to classrooms, gymnasiums, locker rooms, shower facilities, rest/bathrooms, and any other areas where students or others may change clothes or be in any stage or degree of disrobing or changing clothes. The District Administrator and building principals are authorized to determine other specific locations and situations where use of a PCD is absolutely prohibited.

Students shall have no expectation of confidentiality with respect to their use of PCDs on school premises/property.

Students may not use a PCD in any way that might reasonably create in the mind of another person an impression of being threatened, humiliated, harassed, embarrassed, or intimidated. See Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior. In particular, students are prohibited from using PCDs to: (1) transmit material that is threatening, obscene, disruptive, or sexually explicit or that can be construed as harassment or disparagement of others based upon their race, color, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation/transgender identity), disability, age, religion,

ancestry, or political beliefs; and (2) engage in "sexting" - i.e., sending, receiving, sharing, viewing, or possessing pictures, text messages, e-mails or other materials of a sexual nature in electronic or any other form. Violation of these prohibitions shall result in disciplinary action. Furthermore, such actions will be reported to local law enforcement and child services as required by law.

Students are also prohibited from using a PCD to capture, record, and/or transmit test information or any other information in a manner constituting fraud, theft, cheating, or academic dishonesty. Likewise, students are prohibited from using PCDs to receive such information.

Possession of a PCD by a student at school during school hours and/or during extra-curricular activities is a privilege that may be forfeited by any student who fails to abide by the terms of this policy, or otherwise abuses this privilege.

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action and/or confiscation of the PCD. The building principal will also refer the matter to law enforcement or child services if the violation involves an illegal activity (e.g., child pornography, sexting). Discipline will be imposed on an escalating scale ranging from a warning to an expulsion based on the number of previous violations and/or the nature of or circumstances surrounding a particular violation. If the PCD is confiscated, it will be released/returned to the student's parent after the student complies with any other disciplinary consequences that are imposed, unless the violation involves potentially illegal activity in which case the PCD may be turned over to law enforcement. A confiscated device will be marked in a removable manner with the student's name and held in a secure location in the building's central office until it is retrieved by the parent or turned over to law enforcement. School officials will not search or otherwise tamper with PCDs in District custody unless they reasonably suspect that the search is required to discover evidence of a violation of the law or other school rules. Any search will be conducted in accordance with Policy 5771 - Search and Seizure. If multiple offenses occur, a student may lose his/her privilege to bring a PCD to school for a designated length of time or on a permanent basis.

A person who discovers a student using a PCD in violation of this policy is required to report the violation to the building principal.

Students are personally and solely responsible for the care and security of their PCDs. The Board assumes no responsibility for theft, loss, or damage to, or misuse or unauthorized use of, PCDs brought onto its property. [Board Policy 5136]

"Sexting" is prohibited at any time on school property or at school functions. Sexting is the electronic transmission of sexual messages or pictures, usually through cell phone text messaging. Such conduct not only is potentially dangerous for the involved students, but can lead to unwanted exposure of the messages and images to others, and could result in criminal violations related to the transmission or possession of child pornography. Such conduct will be subject to discipline and possible confiscation of the PCD.

Electronic devices may not be used for personal communication from 8:00am to 3:15pm with the exception of class passing time and lunch. If a student brings an electronic device to school, it must be kept in the student's locker.

### Consequences for cell phone misuse:

The first offense of electronic device misuse will result in the student having their phone taken and left in the office for the remainder of the school day. The student will pick up the phone at 3:15pm and will be assigned one lunch detention. Parent notification will occur.

The second offense of electronic device misuse will result in the student having their phone taken and left in the office for the remainder of the school day. The student will pick up the phone at 3:15pm and will be assigned two lunch detentions. Parent notification will occur.

The third offense of electronic device misuse will result in the student having their phone taken and left in the office for the remainder of the school day. The parent will pick up the phone from the office. Discipline consequences will be assigned, which may consist of lunch detentions, in-school suspension, loss of open campus privileges, etc.)

Any further electronic device misuse will be addressed through a parent/student/school conference accompanied by discipline consequences.

### Weapons

The Board prohibits students from possessing, storing, making, or using a weapon in any setting that is under the control and supervision of the District for the purpose of school activities approved and authorized by the District including, but not limited to, property leased, owned, or contracted for by the District, a school-sponsored event, or in a District vehicle, to the extent permitted by law without the permission of the District Administrator.

The term "weapon" means any object which, in the manner in which it is used, is intended to be used, or is represented, is capable of inflicting serious bodily harm or property damage, as well as endangering the health and safety of persons. Weapons include, but are not limited to, firearms (including, but not limited to, firearms as defined in 18 U.S.C. 921(a)(3)), guns of any type whatsoever, including air and gas-powered guns (whether loaded or unloaded), knives, (subject to the exceptions below) razors with unguarded blades, clubs, electric weapons, metallic knuckles, martial arts weapons, chemical agents, ammunition, and explosives.

The District Administrator is authorized to establish instructional programs on weapons and reporting and dealing with violations of this policy.

The District Administrator will refer any student who violates this policy to the student's parents or guardians and may also make a referral to the criminal justice or juvenile delinquency system. The student may also be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including expulsion.

### Policy exceptions include:

- A. weapons under the control of law enforcement personnel while on duty, or qualified former law enforcement officers, off duty law enforcement officers, or out-of-state law enforcement officers.
- B. items pre-approved by a principal, as part of a class or individual presentation under adult supervision, including, but not limited to Hunters' Education courses, if used for the purpose and in the manner approved (working firearms and live ammunition will never be approved);
- C. theatrical props used in appropriate settings; and
- D. a Lockback knife having a blade no longer than three (3) inches in length, a knife lawfully used for food consumption or preparation, or a knife used for a lawful purpose within the scope of the student's class work.

Any student who has reason to believe that a person has or will violate this policy shall report to the District Administrator or the supervisor of the activity immediately. The report should include as much detail as possible concerning the person(s) involved, the weapon, the location of the person(s),

and how this information was obtained.

No student is to confront the person possessing the weapon, but a staff member has the option of confronting the person if the staff member believes the risk of injury to self or others is minimal or if immediate action is necessary to prevent injury to any person.

This policy will be published annually in all District student and staff handbooks. Publication is not a precondition to enforcement of this policy.

#### **Advertising Outside Activities**

No announcements or posting of outside activities will be permitted without the approval of the Principal. A minimum of twenty-four (24) hours notice is required to ensure that the Principal has the opportunity to review the announcement or posting.

#### Video Surveillance

The Board has authorized the use of video surveillance and electronic monitoring equipment at various school sites throughout the school. Any person who takes action to block, move, or alter the location and/or viewing angle of a video camera shall be subject to disciplinary action. (Board Policy 7440.01)

### **Safety and Security**

The safety of our students requires the following precautions that are conducted in accordance with Board Policy 7440 and the School Safety Plan:

- All visitors must enter through the designated visitor entrance and report to the School office when they arrive at School.
- All visitors are given and required to wear a visitor pass while they are in the building.
- All visitors are expected to sign out prior to departing the building.
- The staff is expected to question people in the building whom they do not recognize and who
  are not wearing a visitor pass, and to question people who are "hanging around" the building
  after hours.
- Students and staff are expected to immediately report to a teacher or administrator any suspicious behavior or situation that makes them uncomfortable.
- All outside doors, except the main entrance, are locked during the School day.
- Portions of the building that will not be needed after the regular school days are closed off.
- Students are expected to carry identification cards with them at all times in school or on school property.
- All District employees are to wear photo-identification badges while on District property.

### Reporting of unlawful possession drugs, weapons and other safety threats

The safety and well-being of all students and staff is the number one priority of all individuals involved with the School District of Tomahawk and Tomahawk High School. School Safety is the responsibility of everyone. Students must feel comfortable to report the witnessing of possession of illegal items or the rumor of threats to the safety of others. **If you See Something, Say Something.** Students take the following steps to report illegal activity:

- Discuss the situation privately with a staff member.
- Report the activity to the Guidance Department, Administration, or School Resource Officer (law enforcement)
- Discuss the situation with a parent/guardian and have the parent/guardian contact school administration or guidance.

• Call anonymous hotlines: Crime Stoppers (715-536-3726) or Speak up (1-866-SPEAK-UP)

If students unknowingly or unwillingly come into possession of an illegal item they should immediately report and turn over the item to administration. Doing so will not result in punitive consequences if the student was not involved or responsible for the illegal activity.

#### **SECTION II - ACADEMICS**

### **Academic and Career Planning**

Academic and career planning services, including individualized support and access to software tools and staff assistance, is provided to students in grades 6 to 12. The mission of academic and career planning is to provide a comprehensive plan, which will be developed and maintained by a student, that includes the student's academic, career, personal, and social goals and the means by which the student will achieve those goals both before and after high school graduation. (Board Policy 2411)

#### **Field Trips**

Field trips are academic activities that are held off school grounds. There are also other trips that are part of the school's co-curricular and extracurricular program. No student may participate in any school-sponsored trip without parental consent. (Board Policy 2340)

Attendance rules, the Code of Conduct and the Search and Seizure policy apply to all field trips.

#### **College Visits**

Students missing a day of school to visit a college need to pre-approve the visit with the Counselors a week in advance of the visit. Bring a note from your parents to pre-arrange the absence with the office.

### **Student Technology Acceptable Use Policy**

Students are encouraged to use the school's technology resources for educational purposes. Use of such resources is a privilege, not a right. Students must conduct themselves in a responsible, efficient, ethical, and legal manner. Users are required to refrain from actions that are illegal (such as libel, slander, vandalism, harassment, theft, plagiarism, inappropriate access, and the like) or unkind (such as personal attacks, invasion of privacy, injurious comment, and the like). Unauthorized or inappropriate use, including any violation of the District's policies and administrative guidelines, may result in cancellation of the privilege, disciplinary action consistent with the School's rules, and civil or criminal liability. Smooth operation of the School's network relies upon users adhering to the District's policies and administrative guidelines. Prior to accessing the Internet at School, students must sign the Student Technology Acceptable Use and Safety Agreement each year.

Violation of the Student Technology Acceptable Use and Safety Agreement may result in disciplinary consequences up to and including expulsion from the District, civil liability and/or referral to law enforcement.

The School District reserves the right to monitor, inspect, copy, review and store at any time and without prior notice any and all usage of the computer network and Internet access and any and all information transmitted or received in connection with such usage. All such information files shall be and remain the property of the School District and no user shall have any expectation of privacy regarding such materials.

Use of District technology resources to engage in "cyberbullying" is prohibited. ""Cyberbullying" involves the use of information and communication technologies to support deliberate, repeated, and

hostile behavior by an individual or group, which is intended to harm others."

Cyberbullying includes, but is not limited to the following:

- 1. posting slurs or rumors or other disparaging remarks about a student or school staff member on a web site or on weblog;
- 2. sending e-mail or instant messages that are mean or threatening, or so numerous as to drive up the victim's cell phone bill;
- 3. using a camera phone to take and send embarrassing and/or sexually explicit photographs/recordings of students or school staff;
- 4. posting misleading or fake photographs of students or school staff members on web sites.

To the extent permitted by the First Amendment, instances of cyberbullying off school grounds that disrupt the school environment or interfere with the learning process will be considered violations of the Student Code of Conduct. (Board Policy 7440.03)

Students shall not access social media for personal use from the District's network but shall be permitted to access social media for educational use in accordance with their teacher's approved plan for such use. (Select these options to match the selections in Policy 7540.03)

#### **Student Assessment**

To measure student progress, students will be tested in accordance with State standards and District policy. (Board Policy 2623)

Additional group tests are given to students to monitor progress and determine educational mastery levels. These tests are used to help the staff determine instructional needs.

Classroom tests will be used to assess student progress and assign course grades. These are selected or prepared by teachers to assess how well the students have achieved specific objectives.

Vocational and interest surveys may be given to identify particular areas of student interest or talent. These are often given by the school counseling staff.

If necessary, intelligence tests, speech and language evaluations, individually administered achievement tests, and other special testing services are available to students needing these services.

Depending on the type of testing, specific information and/or parent consent may need to be obtained. The assessment program will not violate the rights of consent and privacy of a student participating in any form of evaluation.

College entrance testing information can be obtained from the School's Counseling office.

#### **Grade Reporting**

Progress Reports are generated at 6 week intervals to monitor and communicate student learning progress. Six Week Progress Report grades are not calculated into the Semester Grade. Semester Grades are independent and are cumulatively calculated throughout the semester.

Report Cards are generated at the completion of each Semester. Semester grades become a part of the student's permanent record. Students withdrawing from a course prior to the end of semester may result in a failing semester grade.

Student's grades are also available with a username and password Skyward Parent and Student

Letter grades are used to indicate a level or progress.

A (90-100%)
B (80-89%)
C (70-79%)
D (60-69%)
F (0-59%)-Failing

Incompletes- Make up work for incompletes must be taken care of within two weeks of the end of the semester. If an incomplete is not changed to a passing grade within these two weeks the grade will become an "F". Any exceptions to this policy must be cleared by school administration.

#### **Class Status**

Grade level advancement is determined by the number of credits earned. A student of sophomore status must have earned **five** credits by the end of the freshman year. A student of junior status must have earned a total of **ten** credits by the end of the sophomore year. A student of senior status must have earned a total of **sixteen** credits by the end of the junior year.

#### Graduation

22 credits are required for graduation. Students must successfully complete 1 1/2 credits of physical education before graduation, four (4) credits of English, three (3) credits of social studies, three (3) credits of science, three (3) credits of mathematics, one-half (½) credit of Personal Finance, one-half (1/2) credit of health. All students must enroll in 6 classes per semester.

Students who have completed ALL requirements (state, Federal, and those of the Tomahawk School District) for graduation may participate in graduation ceremonies and exercises. Students, who at the time graduation exercises are conducted, have not completed all requirements for graduation will not be allowed to participate in graduation ceremonies and exercises. Students who have been identified as having exceptional educational needs and who have met their own requirements may participate in all graduation ceremonies and exercises. Graduation ceremony information is communicated through the school guidance department and the high school office.

### **Early Graduation**

In order to graduate early, the candidate must have:

- Completed seven semesters of high school attendance four of which must have been in the School District of Tomahawk;
- Satisfied all of the requirements of a four-year graduate;
- Qualified by virtue of extenuating circumstances or special goals.

If the applicant meets the above requirements, the student will submit a written request for early graduation to the high school principal, no later than March 15th of the sixth semester. The request must contain a statement of endorsement and the signatures of the parents or legal guardian and must clearly express the reasons for the request.

The matter will be thoroughly reviewed in a conference including the student, counselor, parents and the high school principal. After a complete evaluation of the request, the principal will forward the recommendation to the District Administrator for consideration and Board action.

#### **Class Rank**

Grade point average used to determine class rank begins in Grade 9 and continues through the first

semester of Grade 12. Class ranks are used for scholarships and entrance into colleges. In order to qualify for class rank pertaining to State Scholarships, Valedictorian/Salutatorian, a student must be in continuous attendance and grading in the District starting the first semester of their Junior year.

#### Honor Roll

The High School Honor Roll is intended to give recognition to students that have attained noteworthy scholastic achievements at each semester term.

All courses offered for credit towards a high school diploma are used to determine a student's grade point.

Highest Honors 3.76 - 4.00 High Honors 3.50 - 3.75 Honors 3.00 - 3.49

### **Scholarships**

Students are directed to the High School Counseling Office to obtain information about the scholarship program. Guidance staff will assist students with the application process. Scholarships are awarded by a committee determined by the donating organization. These committees operate under the mandates determined by the donating organization. Many of the scholarship committees are not under the direction of the school district. Scholarships are viewed as a gift from a sponsoring organization to support the future plans of the students selected for the scholarship. Students must have completed applications to the guidance office by the date specified. It is the student's responsibility to adhere to deadlines and information needed.

- 1. **Academic Excellence Scholarship** Refer to current School Board policy for selection criteria.
- 2. **Technical Excellence Scholarship** (TES) Refer to current School Board policy for selection criteria.
- 3. Local & Other Scholarships Communicate with THS Counseling Office for information.

### **SECTION III - STUDENT ACTIVITIES**

### **School Sponsored Clubs and Activities**

Students have the opportunity to broaden their learning through curricular-related activities. A curricular-related activity may be for credit, required for a particular course, and/or contain school subject matter.

The school has many student groups that are approved by the Board. For a current list of student groups contact the Activities Director or reference the Co-Curricular Code of Conduct.

Extra-curricular activities do not reflect the school curriculum, but are made available to students to allow them to pursue additional worthwhile activities such as recreational sports, drama, and the like.

For a current list of extracurricular activities contact the Activities Director or reference the Co-Curricular Code of Conduct.

All students are permitted to participate in the activities of their choosing, as long as they meet the eligibility requirements. (Board Policy 2430)

### **School Sponsored Publications and Productions**

The Board sponsors student publications and productions as a means by which students learn, under

adult direction/supervision, the rights and responsibilities inherent when engaging in the public expression of ideas and information in our democratic society. (Board Policy 5722)

#### **SECTION IV - STUDENT CONDUCT**

#### Attendance

The District requires all students to attend school regularly in accordance with the laws of Wisconsin and Board Policy 5200. The school's educational program is predicated upon the presence of the student and requires continuity of instruction and classroom participation. The regular contact of students with one another in the classroom and their participation in a well-planned instructional activity under the guidance of a competent teacher are vital to this purpose.

### **Compulsory Student Attendance**

All children between six (6) and eighteen (18) years of age shall attend school regularly during the full period and hours, religious holidays excepted, that the school is in session. All students must attend until the end of the term, quarter or semester of the school year in which the child becomes eighteen (18) years of age unless they fall under an exception outlined in the District's Administrative Guidelines. A child who is enrolled in five (5) year-old kindergarten shall attend school regularly, religious holidays excepted, during the full period and hours that kindergarten is in session until the end of the school term.

Attendance is also defined as participation in the various forms of distance learning including videoconference, satellite, Internet or other electronic information and telecommunications technologies. Discuss these alternatives with your school counselor since approval may be required prior to enrollment in a distance learning program.

### **Excuse for Absence**

A parent of a student who is absent shall provide either a written or oral notification stating the reason for and the time period of the absence. This statement must be submitted prior to the absence if the absence is foreseeable. If the absence is not foreseeable, the statement must be provided prior to the student's readmission to school. The statement shall be submitted to the school office and filed in the student's school record. The District reserves the right to verify statements and investigate absences from school.

#### **Release of Students to Authorized Persons**

If only one (1) parent is permitted to make educational decisions or to approve absences of the student by Court order, the responsible parent shall provide the school with a copy of the Court order. Absent such notice, the school will presume that the student may be released into the care of either parent.

No student who has a medical disability which may be incapacitating may be released without a person to accompany him/her.

No student shall be released to anyone who is not authorized by a parent with authority to do so.

### **Excused Absences**

A student <u>shall</u> be excused from school for the following reasons:

### Physical or Mental Condition

The student is temporarily not in proper physical or mental condition to attend a school program. If the absence exceeds the number of parent excused days available, the inability of the student to attend school due to a physical or mental condition must be certified in writing by a licensed physician, dentist, chiropractor, optometrist or psychologist or Christian Science

practitioner living and residing in Wisconsin, who is listed in the Christian Science Journal. The time period for which the certification is valid may not exceed thirty [30] days.

### Obtaining Religious Instruction

Students may wish to obtain religious instruction outside the school during the required school period. The time period or periods of absence shall be determined by school administration. Such absences must be at least 60 minutes but not more than 180 minutes per week. Requests for absence under this paragraph shall be denied if the student fails to attend religious instruction after requesting to be absent from his or her regular school. The supervisor of such religious instruction shall report monthly, to the principal of the school regularly attended, the names of the students who attended such weekly religious instruction.

### Permission of Parent or Guardian

The student may be excused by his or her parent or guardian before the absence for any or no reason. A student may not be excused for more than ten (10) days under this paragraph and must complete any course work missed during the absence. Examples of reasons for being absent that should be counted under this paragraph include, but are not limited to, the following:

- 1. professional and other necessary appointments (e.g., medical, dental, and legal) that cannot be scheduled outside the school day
- 2. to attend the funeral
- 3. legal proceedings that require the student's presence
- 4. college visits
- 5. job fairs
- 6. vacations

Parents are encouraged not to take their child out of school for vacations. When a family vacation must be scheduled during the school year, the parents should discuss the matter with the student's teacher(s) to make necessary arrangements.

#### Religious Holiday

The student wishes to observe a religious holiday consistent with the student's creed or belief.

### Suspension or Expulsion

The student has been suspended or expelled.

### Program or Curriculum Modification

Students may be excused from regular school attendance to participate in a program or curriculum modification leading to high school graduation or a high school equivalency diploma as provided by State law.

### <u>High School Equivalency – Secured Facilities</u>

A student may be excused from regular school attendance to participate in a program leading to a high school equivalency diploma in a secured correctional facility, a secured child caring institution, a secure detention facility, or a juvenile portion of a county jail. The student and his/her parent or guardian must agree that the student will continue to participate in such a program.

### Child at Risk

The student is a "child at risk" as defined under State law and is participating in a program at

a technical college on either a part-time or full-time basis leading to high school, as provided under State law.

#### **Election Day Official**

A high school student age sixteen (16) or seventeen (17) is permitted to be excused to serve as an election official provided that the following criteria are met: (1) the student has the permission of his/her parent to serve as an election official on election day; (2) the student has signed up and the municipal clerk has informed the principal that the student has been assigned to serve in this capacity; and (3) the student has at least a 3.0 grade point average or equivalent, or has met alternative criteria established by Board, if any. The principal shall promptly notify the municipal clerk or the board of election commissioners of the municipality that appointed the child as an election official if the child no longer has at least a 3.0 grade point average or the equivalent, or no longer meets the established alternative requirements. A student's absence to serve as an election official under this policy shall be treated as an excused absence. Where possible students are encouraged to provide advance notice as much as possible. Students are responsible for completing any missed school work and responsible for making appropriate arrangements to do so.

A student may be excused from school, as determined by the School Attendance Officer, for the following reasons:

#### A. Quarantine

Quarantine of the student's home by a public health officer.

B. Illness of an Immediate Family Member The illness of an immediate family member.

### C. Emergency

An emergency that requires the student to be absent because of family responsibilities or other appropriate reasons.

D. Work at Home Due to Absence of Parents

To work at home due to the absence of the student's parents. Absences under this section shall not exceed five (5) days nor be granted to any student younger than sixteen (16) years of age.

### Truancy

"Truancy" means any absence of part or all of one or more days from school during which the school attendance officer, principal, or teacher has not been notified of the legal cause of such absence by the parent or guardian of the absent pupil, and also means intermittent attendance carried on for the purpose of defeating the intent. Wisconsin Statute 118.16(c).

"Habitual truant" means a pupil who is absent from school without an acceptable excuse for part or all of five or more days on which school is held during a school semester. Wisconsin Statute 118.16(a).

When a student is truant, the School Attendance Officer shall ensure that all applicable provisions of the District's Truancy Plan are carried out. Citations may be issued by the Tomahawk Police Department to students who are truant from school.

### **Unexcused Absences**

Unexcused absences demonstrate a deliberate disregard for the educational program and are

considered a serious matter. The Principal will determine on a case-by-case basis the appropriate methods to deal with unexcused absences.

It is the student's responsibility to clear up any discrepancies in attendance. It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to provide reasons for student absences and the school's responsibility to determine if the absence is excused or unexcused.

Administrative action to address unexcused absences shall be in accord with due process as defined in Policy 5611, the Student Code of Conduct, and other applicable Board Policies.

### Late Arrival and Early Dismissal

It is necessary that a student be in attendance throughout the school day in order to benefit fully from the educational program of the District.

The Board recognizes, however, that from time-to-time compelling circumstances require that a student be late to school or dismissed before the end of the school day.

As an agent for the education of the children of this District, the Board shall require that the school be notified in advance of such absences by written (including email) and/or personal (phone or face-to-face) request of the student's parent, who shall state the reason for the tardiness or early dismissal. Justifiable reasons shall be determined by the Building Principal or Associate Principal.

No student who has a medical disability which may be incapacitating may be released without a person to accompany him/her.

No student shall be released to anyone who is not authorized such custody by the parents.

### Parent/Guardian Attendance Responsibilities

It is the responsibility of the student's parent or guardian to ensure that their child attends school regularly. Parents are expected to provide an excuse for all absences.

### **Student Attendance Responsibilities**

Students are required to attend all classes and other school activities on their daily schedule, unless they have been excused from school.

Upon returning to school, if the parent or guardian of the student did not call in an excused absence, they must provide a note explaining the reason for the absence. The office must receive the guardian communication within two (2) school days of the absence or the absence may remain unexcused.

Students must obtain an admit slip from the school office for all classes missed the previous day(s) PRIOR TO first hour class. Students should report to the office immediately upon arrival to school.

### Students Leaving School During the School Day

In order for a student to leave the building during the school day, a parent/guardian must first contact the school office prior to a student leaving their assigned location. Students are to sign-out in the school office prior to leaving school for any reason other than a school sponsored activity. \*Calls during the school day to arrange for leaving must be made from the high school office phone with permission.

No staff member shall permit or cause any student to leave school prior to the regular hour of dismissal except with the knowledge and approval of the Principal and with the knowledge and

approval of the student's parents.

No student will be released to any government agency without proper warrant or written parental permission except in the event of an emergency as determined by the Principal.

### Make-Up Course Work and Examinations

A student whose absence from school was excused or unexcused shall be permitted to make-up course work and examinations missed during the absence when they return to school. It is the student's responsibility to contact his or her teachers to determine what coursework and examinations must be made up. Teachers shall have the discretion to assign substitute coursework and examination. Teachers shall also have the discretion to specify where and when examinations and course work shall be completed, including outside regular school hours. The time for completing the work shall be commensurate with the length of the absence, unless extended based upon extenuating circumstances.

#### **Unexcused Absences**

Credit in a course or subject shall not be denied solely because of a student's unexcused absence from school.

A student whose absence from school was unexcused shall be permitted to make-up course work and quarterly, semester or grading period examinations missed during the absence if the student is at risk of receiving no credit in a course or subject if the work is not made up.

Subject to the immediately preceding two paragraphs, credit may, but is not required to be given for the completion of make-up work. Further, credit for make-up work may be given only after the student has satisfied consequences imposed for unexcused absences. The extent to which make-up credit is given shall be determined on a case-by-case basis by the Principal and the respective teachers.

If make-up work is allowed, it is the student's responsibility to contact his or her teachers to determine what coursework and examinations must be made-up. Teachers shall have the discretion to assign substitute coursework and examinations. Teachers shall also have the discretion to specify where and when examinations and course work shall be completed, including outside regular school hours. The time for completing the work shall be commensurate with the length of the absence, unless extended by the Principal based upon extenuating circumstances.

### **Tardiness**

Students who are not in their assigned location class when the 1st period bell rings are considered tardy. All students who are tardy to school must report to the school office to sign in. When a teacher detains a student after class, s/he shall issue a late pass for the student's next class. Individual teachers will enforce disciplinary procedures for tardies. Repeated tardiness will result in referral to the office and further disciplinary action.

#### **Student Behavior**

A major component of the educational program is to prepare students to become responsible workers and citizens by learning how to conduct themselves properly and in accordance with established standards.

### **Expected Behaviors**

Each student shall be expected to:

- abide by national, State, and local laws as well as the rules of the school;
- respect the civil rights of others;

- act courteously to adults and fellow students;
- be prompt to school and attentive in class;
- work cooperatively with others when involved in accomplishing a common goal regardless of the other's ability, sex, sexual orientation, race, or ethnic background;
- complete assigned tasks on time and as directed;
- help maintain a school environment that is safe, friendly, and productive;
- act at all times in a manner that reflects pride in self, family and in the school.

### **Lunchroom Expectations:**

- Students are expected to report to lunch by the end of the 4 minute passing period.
- Students will remain in the cafeteria after finishing lunch.
- Students may use the grass area directly outside the cafeteria with permission from a supervising staff member. Weather permitting.
- Students are expected to use good table manners and clean up after themselves when finished.
- Students must have permission from a staff member to leave the cafeteria prior to lunch ending.
- Talking, visiting and use of building within the above limitations is permitted and acceptable.
   However, we encourage students to refrain from loud and boisterous conduct, which would be disrupting normal business proceedings in nearby classrooms.

### **Drug Abuse Prevention**

The administration and staff recognize that the misuse of drugs is a serious problem with legal, physical, and social implications for the entire school community.

As the educational institution of this community, our school strives to prevent drug abuse and help drug abusers by educational, rather than punitive, means.

For purposes of this policy, "drugs" shall mean:

- all dangerous controlled substances as so designated and prohibited by Wisconsin statute;
- all chemicals which release toxic vapors;
- all alcoholic beverages;
- any prescription or patent drug, except those for which permission to use in school has been granted pursuant to Board policy;
- "look-alikes"
- anabolic steroids:
- any other illegal substances so designated and prohibited by law.

The use, possession, concealment, or distribution of any drug, drug look-alike and any drug-paraphernalia at any time on school property or at any school-related event is prohibited. Disciplinary sanctions, up to and including expulsion and referral for prosecution, will be imposed on students who violate the school's drug abuse guidelines. (Board Policy 5530)

### **Use of Tobacco/Nicotine Prohibited**

The Board is committed to providing students, staff, and visitors with a tobacco and smoke-free environment. The negative health effects of tobacco and nicotine use for both users and non-users, particularly in connection with second hand smoke, are well-established. In addition, students less than eighteen (18) years of age are generally prohibited by law from purchasing or possessing cigarettes and other tobacco products.

For purposes of this policy, "use of tobacco" means to chew or maintain any substance containing tobacco, including smokeless tobacco, in the mouth to derive the effects of tobacco, as well as all uses

of tobacco, including cigars, cigarettes, pipe tobacco, chewing tobacco, snuff, any other matter or substances that contain tobacco, in addition to papers used to roll cigarettes and/or the smoking of electronic, "vapor," or other substitute or simulated forms of cigarettes, clove cigarettes and any other lighted smoking devices for burning tobacco or any other substance. The use of other products containing nicotine, such as nicotine patches and nicotine gum is also prohibited except when a student provides documentation from a licensed medical practitioner that the student's use of non-tobacco nicotine products is being medically supervised for the cessation of a nicotine addiction and the student complies with Policy 5330 - Administration of Medication. Accordingly, the Board prohibits students from using or possessing tobacco or nicotine in any form on District premises, in District vehicles, within any indoor or outdoor facility owned or while leased or contracted for by the District and used to provide education or library services to children, and at all District-sponsored events. (Board Policy 5512)

Students who fail to abide by the policy will be subject to the following consequences:

- The first violation by a student of the no tobacco use policy results in a one to a three-day suspension and referral to legal authorities.
- The second violation results in a two to a five-day suspension and referral to legal authorities.
- The third violation results in a two to a five-day suspension and referral to legal authorities.
- The fourth violation may result in a suspension and referral to the school board for expulsion.

#### **Student Code of Classroom Conduct**

The school is committed to maintaining an orderly and safe academic atmosphere. Teachers are expected to create a positive learning environment and to maintain proper order in the classroom. Students are expected to behave in the classroom in a manner that allows teachers to effectively carry out their lessons and allows students to participate in classroom learning activities. Students are also expected to abide by all rules of behavior established by the school and their classroom teachers.

To ensure adherence to these expectations and principles, the Board has adopted this Code of Classroom Conduct, which applies to all students. (Board Policy 5500)

#### Grounds for Removal of a Student from Class

Disturbances that interrupt the learning process cannot be permitted by any teacher. A teacher may temporarily remove a student from the teacher's class if the student violates the Code of Classroom Conduct. Additionally, the student may be removed from the class for a longer period of time within the discretion of the Principal. A student removed from class may also be placed in an alternative education setting.

Removal of a student from class for violating the Code of Classroom Conduct or placement of the student in an alternative educational setting does not prohibit the school from further disciplining the student for the conduct that caused removal or placement including, but not limited to, suspending or expelling the student.

It is neither possible nor necessary to specify every type of improper or inappropriate behavior for which a teacher may remove a student from class. Provided below, however, are examples of reasons a student may be removed from class. A teacher may remove a student from class for conduct or behavior that:

- A. would result in suspension or expulsion under the Board's policies and procedures;
- B. violates the behavioral rules and expectations of the school;
- C. is dangerous, disruptive or unruly. Such behavior includes, but is not limited to, the

#### following:

- 1. possession or use of a weapon or look-alike or other item that might cause bodily harm to persons in the classroom;
- 2. being under the influence of alcohol or controlled substances or otherwise violating the District alcohol and drug policy;
- 3. behavior that interferes with a person's work or school performance or creates an intimidating, hostile, harassing, or offensive classroom environment;
- 4. arguing, taunting, baiting, inciting or encouraging an argument or disruption or group posturing to provoke altercations or confrontations;
- 5. disruption or intimidation caused by gang or group symbols or gestures, or gang or group posturing to provoke altercations or confrontations;
- 6. pushing, striking, or other inappropriate physical contact with a student or staff member;
- 7. interfering with the orderly operation of the classroom by using, threatening to use or counseling others to use violence, force, coercion, threats, intimidation, fear, or disruptive means;
- 8. dressing or grooming in a manner that presents a danger to health or safety, causes interference with work, or creates classroom disorder;
- 9. restricting another person's freedom to properly utilize classroom facilities or equipment;
- 10. repeated classroom interruptions, confronting staff argumentatively, making loud noises, or refusing to follow directions;
- 11. throwing objects in the classroom;
- 12. repeated disruptions or violations of classroom rules, or excessive or disruptive talking;
- 13. behavior that causes the teacher or other students fear of physical or psychological harm;
- 14. willful damage to or theft of school property or the property of others; or
- 15. repeated use of profanity.
- D. interferes with the ability of the teacher to teach effectively. Such conduct includes, but is not limited to, the following:
  - 1. repeated reporting to class without bringing necessary materials to participate in class activities; or
  - 2. possession of personal property by school rules or otherwise disruptive to the teaching and learning of others.
- E. shows disrespect or defiance of the teacher, exhibited in words, gestures or other behavior; or
- F. is inconsistent with class decorum and the ability of others to learn. Such behavior includes, but is not limited to, sleeping in class, blatant inattention, or other overt or passive refusal or inability to engage in class activities.

### Other Forms of Discipline

It is important to remember that the school's rules apply at school, on school property, at school-sponsored events, and on school transportation. In some cases, a student can be suspended from school transportation for infractions of school bus rules.

Ultimately, it is the Principal's responsibility to keep things orderly. In all cases, the school shall attempt to make discipline prompt and equitable and to have the punishment match the severity of the incident.

### **Informal Discipline**

Informal discipline takes place within the school. Examples include:

- Conference between the student and teacher, student and counselor, or student and administration.
- Detention and/or other corrective discipline.
- Notification of parent/guardian by phone and/or letter.
- Parent conference with a teacher, principal or other administrator
- Change of seating or location;
- Lunch-time detention
- In-school restriction;

#### **Detentions**

Detentions may be given for the following reasons:

- 1. Tardiness to school or in between classes.
- 2. Unexcused absence.
- 3. Misconduct in the study hall, library, classroom, corridors, in any school-related activity and on the school grounds.

Only the assigning staff member or administrator may excuse the student from serving his/her detention. Detentions will be assigned to be served prior to the start of the school day, after school, or lunchtime. Students who are assigned detention and fail to appear will be reported to the office. If the student is unable to serve detention at the designated time he/she is to report to the office to make arrangements for serving at another time. **Detention takes precedence over all other school lunchtime activities.** Failure to serve detention by a reasonable deadline may result in the student being suspended and further disciplinary action.

### **Suspension and Expulsion**

Board Policy 5610 authorizes the use of suspension and/or expulsion as follows:

### A. Suspension

#### 1. Duration and Grounds for Suspension

The Principal or a person designated by the Principal may suspend a student for up to five (5) school days or, if a notice of expulsion hearing has been sent, for up to fifteen (15) consecutive school days or ten (10) consecutive school days if the student is eligible for special education services under Chapter 115, Wis. Stats., if the suspension is reasonably justified and based upon any of the following misconduct:

- a. Noncompliance with school or School Board rules;
- Knowingly conveying any threat or false information concerning an attempt or alleged attempt being made or to be made to destroy any school property by means of explosives;
- c. Conduct by the student while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority that endangers the property, health or safety of others;
- d. Conduct while not at school or while not under the supervision of a school authority that endangers the property, health or safety of others at school or under the supervision of a school authority;
- e. Conduct while not at school or while not under the supervision of a school authority that endangers the property, health or safety of any employee or School Board member of the School District in which the student is enrolled.
- f. Under paragraphs c, d, and e above, conduct that endangers a person or property includes making a threat to the health or safety of a person or making a threat to damage property.

The District Administrator, or any Principal or teacher designated by the District Administrator shall suspend a student if the student possessed a firearm while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority.

The suspension period applies to "school days." Thus, a suspension period does not include weekend days or vacation days.

### 2. Suspension Procedure

Prior to being suspended, on the day of the alleged infraction or as soon thereafter as is practicable, the student will be advised orally or in writing of the reason for the proposed suspension and given an opportunity to explain his or her conduct.

The Principal, within his or her discretion, may also inform the student's parents or guardian of the reason for the proposed suspension prior to suspending the student.

### 3. Notice of Suspension

The parent or guardian of a suspended minor student shall be given prompt written notice of the suspension and the reason for the suspension by mail and by sending a copy of the notice home with the student. Oral notice may also be given to the student's parent or guardian; however, it will be confirmed in writing.

### 4. Sending a Student Home on the day of the Suspension

Generally, the student should remain in school on the day of the suspension until school is dismissed for the day. Except as provided below, if the situation requires that the student be removed from the premises before school is dismissed, the Principal shall attempt to contact the student's parent or guardian to request that s/he pick up the student. If the parent/guardian is unable to pick up the student, the student should remain under the school's supervision until school is dismissed, or in the event law enforcement is involved, under law enforcement supervision.

### 5. Opportunity to Complete School Work

A suspended student shall not be denied the opportunity to complete coursework or take any assessments missed during the suspension period. Procedures and timelines will be at the discretion of the teacher.

### 6. Reference to the Suspension in the Student's Record

The student's suspension from school shall be entered in the student's record as required by the rules adopted by the School Board concerning the content of student records.

The suspended student or the student's parent or guardian may, within five (5) school days following the commencement of the suspension, have a conference with the District Administrator or his or her designee, who shall be someone other than a Principal, administrator or teacher in the suspended student's school, to discuss removing reference to the suspension from the student's records.

Reference to the suspension in the student's school record shall be removed if the District Administrator finds that: the student was suspended unfairly or unjustly; the suspension was inappropriate, given the nature of the alleged offense; or the student suffered undue consequences or penalties as a result of the suspension.

The District Administrator, or the administrator's designee, shall make his or her finding within fifteen (15) days of the conference.

### **B.** Expulsion

### 1. Grounds for Expulsion

The School Board may expel a student only when it is satisfied that the interest of the school demands the student's expulsion and it finds that the student: repeatedly refused or neglected to obey the rules established by the School District; knowingly

conveyed or caused to be conveyed any threat or false information concerning an attempt or alleged attempt being made or to be made to destroy any school property by means of explosives; engaged in conduct while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority that endangered the property, health or safety of others; engaged in conduct while not at school or while not under the supervision of a school authority that endangered the property, health or safety of others at school or under the supervision of a school authority or endangered the property, health or safety of any employee or School Board member of the School District in which the student is enrolled; or was at least sixteen (16) years old and had repeatedly engaged in conduct while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority that disrupted the ability of school authorities to maintain order or an educational atmosphere at school or at an activity supervised by a school authority and that such conduct did not otherwise constitute grounds for expulsion.

Under this section, conduct that endangers a person or property includes threatening the health or safety of a person or threatening to damage property.

### 2. Expulsion for Bringing a Firearm to School

The School Board shall expel a student from school for not less than one (1) year whenever it finds that the student brought a firearm to school or, while at school or while under the supervision of a school authority, possessed a firearm, unless the Board finds that the punishment should be reduced based upon the circumstances of the incident. Any such finding by the Board shall be in writing.

### 3. Expulsion Hearing

Prior to expelling a student, the School Board shall provide the student with a hearing. Prior written notice of the expulsion hearing must be sent separately both to the student and his/her parent(s) or guardian(s) if the student is a minor; otherwise just to the student. The notice will comply with the requirements of State law.

The student, or the student's parent if the student is a minor, has the right to request a closed hearing or the Board may choose to close the hearing. The student and, if the student is a minor, the student's parent or guardian may be represented at the hearing by counsel.

### 4. Expulsion Order

The Board shall reduce its decision to writing in the form of a written order. If expulsion is ordered, the order must state the length of time that the student is to be expelled. The order should also state specific findings of fact and conclusions of law in support of the decision.

### 5. Student Records

The student's expulsion from school shall be entered in the student's record as required by the rules adopted by the School Board concerning the content of student records.

### **Discipline of Disabled Students**

Students with disabilities will be entitled to the rights and procedures afforded by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (I.D.E.A.) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (A.D.A.).

### **Search and Seizure**

Search of a student and his/her possessions, including vehicles, may be conducted at any time the student is under the jurisdiction of the Board, if there is a reasonable suspicion that the student is in violation of law or school rules. (Board Policy 5771) A search may also be conducted to protect the

safety of others or as otherwise permitted by law.

Students are provided lockers, desks, and other equipment in which to store materials. It should be clearly understood that this equipment is the property of the school and may be searched at any time if there is reasonable suspicion that a student has violated the law or school rules. Locks are to prevent theft, not to prevent searches.

All computers located in classrooms, labs and offices of the District are the District's property and are to be used by students, where appropriate, for educational purposes. The District retains the right to access and review all electronic, computer files, databases, and any other electronic transmissions contained in or used in conjunction with the District's computer system, network, and electronic mail. Students should have no expectation that any information contained on such systems is confidential or private.

Review of such information may be done by the District with or without the student's knowledge or permission. The use of passwords does not guarantee confidentiality, and the District retains the right to access information in spite of a password. A student's refusal to permit such access may be grounds for disciplinary action.

No strip searches will be conducted by any employee of the District, but may be conducted by law enforcement officials, if deemed necessary.

The Principal may arrange for a breath test for blood-alcohol to be conducted on a student whenever s/he has individualized reasonable suspicion to believe the student has consumed or is under the influence of an alcoholic beverage while on school premises or while participating in a school-sponsored activity. If the student refuses to take the test, the Principal will inform the student that refusal to participate implies admission of guilt leading to disciplinary action consistent with this handbook.

Anything that is found in the course of a search that may be evidence of a violation of school rules or the law may be taken and held or turned over to the police. The school reserves the right not to return items which have been confiscated. (Board Policy 5771)

### **Students Rights of Expression**

Our school recognizes the right of students to express themselves. With the right of expression comes the responsibility to do it appropriately. Students may distribute or display, at appropriate times, non-sponsored, noncommercial written material and petitions; buttons, badges, or other insignia; clothing, insignia, and banners; and audio and video materials. All items must meet the following school guidelines:

- A. A material cannot be displayed if it:
  - 1. is obscene to minors, libelous, indecent, or vulgar;
  - 2. advertises any product or service not permitted to minors by law;
  - 3. intends to be insulting or harassing;
  - 4. intends to incite fighting or presents a likelihood of disrupting school or a school event; or
  - 5. presents a clear and present likelihood that, either because of its content or manner of distribution or display, it causes or is likely to cause a material and substantial disruption of school or school activities, a violation of school regulations, or the commission of an unlawful act.
- B. Materials may not be displayed or distributed during class periods, or during passing times between classes. Permission may be granted for display or distribution during lunch periods

and after school in designated locations, as long as exits are not blocked and there is proper access and egress to the building.

Students who are unsure whether or not materials they wish to display meet school guidelines may present them to the appropriate staff member twenty-four (24) hours prior to display.

### **Dress and Grooming**

While fashions change, the reason for being in school does not. Education is the business of youth, appropriate dress and grooming are important assets for the student in seeking their educational goals. Appropriate dress and grooming outside the school building or school activity does not necessarily meet the standards of appropriate Tomahawk High School dress code guidelines.

Factors such as health, hygiene, safety and habits of self-discipline are considered essential as guidelines. Special classes (shops, labs, physical education, etc.) may establish additional rules governing dress and hair. Safety of students requires guidelines for shop classes, labs, etc.

Any fashion (attire, accessory, or hairstyle) that disrupts the educational process or presents a safety risk will not be permitted (ie: clothing that fails to cover the torso or undergarments). Personal expression is permitted within these general guidelines. If a student has selected a manner of appearance that is beyond mere freedom of expression and disrupts the educational process or presents risk to themselves or others, they may be removed from the educational setting.

Students who are representing our school at an official function or public event may be required to follow specific dress requirements. Usually, this applies to athletic teams, bands, and other such groups. (Board Policy 5511)

### The following examples will not be permitted:

- 1. Wearing of hats, bandannas, hoods or similar headwear between the hours of 7:45 A.M. and 3:15 P.M. on normal school days.
- 2. Wallet chains or chains which hang from clothing.
- 3. Wearing of clothing with drug/alcohol slogans or advertising.
- 4. Wearing of coats or jackets unless approved due to uncomfortable temperature within the building.
- 5. Students without footwear.
- 6. Wearing unapproved face covering or paint that conceals identity.
- 7. Clothing articles that cause excessive wear or damage to school property.
- 8. Carrying backpacks, shoulder bags, gym bags or purses during the school day.

### **Care of Property**

Students are responsible for the care of their own personal property. The school will not be responsible for the loss of personal property. Valuables such as jewelry or irreplaceable items should not be brought to school. The school may confiscate such items and return them to the student's parents.

Damage to or loss of school equipment and facilities wastes taxpayers' money and undermines the school program. Therefore, if a student damages or loses school property, the student or his/her parents will be required to pay for the replacement or damage. If the damage or loss was intentional, the student will also be subject to discipline according to the Code of Conduct, and may be referred to law enforcement. (Board Policy 5113)

#### **Student Due Process Rights**

The Board recognizes the importance of safeguarding a student's constitutional rights, particularly when subject to the District's disciplinary procedures.

To better ensure appropriate due-process is provided a student, the Board establishes the following guidelines in Policy 5611:

### A. Students subject to suspension:

The suspended student, and if a minor, the parent of the suspended minor student shall be given prompt notice of the suspension and the reason for the suspension. The student or the student's parents may within five (5) school days following the beginning of the suspension, have a conference with the District Administrator. This conference will serve as the opportunity for the student to respond to the charges against him/her. If the District Administrator finds that the student was suspended unfairly or unjustly or that the student suffered undue consequences as the result of suspension, the student's record shall be expunged.

### B. Students subject to expulsion:

Prior to expelling a student, the Board must hold a hearing. A student and his/her parent must be given written notice of the intention to expel and the reasons therefore, at least five (5) days prior to the date of the hearing. The hearing is the opportunity for the student and his/her parent to appear with a representative or legal counsel before the Board to answer the charges. The Board will keep written minutes of the hearing. The hearing will be closed. The student and/or his/her parent may appeal the expulsion consistent with Chapter 120.13, Wis. Stats.

### **SECTION V - TRANSPORTATION**

#### **Bus Transportation**

### To/From School

Bus transportation is provided for all eligible students. The bus schedule and route is available by contacting the Tomahawk Bus Company at (715) 453-3000.

Students will ride only assigned school buses and will board and depart from the bus at assigned bus stops. Students will not be permitted to ride unassigned buses for any reason other than an emergency, except as approved by the Tomahawk Bus Company.

A change in a student's regular assigned bus stop may be granted for a special need, if a note from a parent is submitted to the Tomahawk Bus Company stating the reason for the request and the duration of the change and the bus company approves.

### **Field Trips**

Students participating in an approved field trip must have a "parent/guardian" permission form on file in the office prior to participation in this activity. All students participating in field trips must ride the bus to and from the activity.

#### **Co-Curricular Activities**

All students participating in co-curricular activities must ride the bus to and from the activity/ contest. Students may ride home with their parents only if the parent completes the Transportation Liability Waiver form located in the High School office or on Skyward. Parents taking their child home from an activity/contest must sign out with the coach before leaving the event. The student must ride home with his/her parents, not parents of friends, relatives, siblings, etc.. The administration may make an

exception to this rule if unusual circumstances are communicated by the parent.

### **Bus Conduct**

Students who are riding to and from school on transportation provided by the school are required to follow some basic safety rules. The driver is responsible for student safety and may assign seating or direct the student in any reasonable manner to maintain that safety.

The following behaviors are expected of all students:

#### Previous to loading (on the road and at school)

Each student shall:

- be on time at the designated loading zone;
- stay off the road at all times while walking to and waiting for the bus;
- line up single file off the roadway to enter;
- wait until the bus is completely stopped before moving forward to enter;
- refrain from crossing a highway until the bus driver signals it is safe;
- go immediately to a seat and be seated.

It is the parents' responsibility to inform the bus driver when their child will not be boarding the bus. The bus will not wait.

### **During the trip**

Each student shall:

- remain seated while the bus is in motion;
- keep head, hands, arms, and legs inside the bus at all times;
- not litter in the bus or throw anything from the bus;
- keep books, packages, coats, and all other objects out of the aisle;
- be courteous to the driver and to other bus riders;
- not eat, play games or play cards, etc.;
- not tamper with the bus or any of its equipment.

### Leaving the bus

Each student shall:

- remain seated until the bus has stopped;
- cross the road, when necessary, at least ten (10) feet in front of the bus, but only after the driver signals that it is safe;
- be alert to a possible danger signal from the driver.

The driver will not discharge students at places other than their regular stop at home or at school unless s/he has proper authorization from Tomahawk Bus Company.

#### **Penalties for Bus Infractions**

A student who engages in misconduct on a bus shall be subject to discipline and may be deprived of the privilege of riding on the bus.

### Vehicles and Parking

Driving to school and parking on school property is a privilege for students. (Board Policy 5514.01) Students may drive to school with permission of their parent or guardian and school officials. Students who drive on school property and/or park on school property may have this privilege revoked for unacceptable student conduct. Inappropriate driving actions or unacceptable student conduct my result in the following:

1. Warning from staff or administration,

- 2. Short term loss of driving/parking privileges.
- 3. Long term loss of driving/parking privileges.
- 4. Permanent loss of driving/parking privileges.
- 5. Referral to the Tomahawk Police Department.
- 6. Detention, suspension, or expulsion.

### To park a vehicle on school property a student must have the following:

- 1. Parent/guardian permission slip.
- 2. Current parking permit displayed in the lower left corner (driver's side) of the vehicle's windshield.
- 3. If a student wishes to drive/park multiple vehicles on school property they must register and have a permit on each vehicle.
- 4. All vehicles (automobile, motorcycle, atv/utv) must be parked in an identified parking space.

### **General Rules:**

- 1. Students operating an automobile, motorcycle, atv/utv or snowmobile on school property shall respect classes in session.
- 2. Vehicles can be moved during class time only with appropriate approval by school officials.
- 3. The maximum speed limit is 15 m.p.h.
- 4. Students must park their vehicles in the back lot of the school (located on the East side of the school).
- 5. Students must park their vehicles within the designated spaces.
- 6. Students should only operate motorized vehicles on the roadway.
- 7. All vehicles will be operated with extreme caution and with the highest regard for the safety of all individuals including operators, riders, and pedestrians.

### <u>TOMAHAWK HIGH SCHOOL FACULTY</u>

**TECH ED** 

ADMINISTRATION

Mr. Ryan Huseby, Principal

Mrs. Stacy Bolder, Associate Principal

**ACTIVITIES DIRECTOR** 

Mr. Scott Parsons

ADMINISTRATOR ASSISTANT

Mrs. Michelle Schiltz Mrs. Sue Gerber

Mrs. Jen Beaumier (Guidance)

**MATHEMATICS** 

Mr. Adam Blomberg Mr. Jacob Jarvensivu

Mr. James Norman

ART

Mrs. Julie Schroder

**BUSINESS EDUCATION** 

Mr. Scott Neu

**FAMILY & CONSUMER ED** 

Mrs. Allison Ewart

**ENGLISH** 

Mr. Sam Hernandez Mr. Patrick Steffen

Mrs. Celena Sankey

Mrs. Sheri Woodall

**HEALTH** 

Mrs. Taylor Hudzinski-Pike

SPECIAL EDUCATION

Mrs. Michelle Dallman

Mr. Jason Stromberg

Mr. Scott Wendt

**LIBRARIAN** 

Mrs. Paula Norman

Mr. Ryan Schroder

Mr. Andrew Peissig Mr. Brian Schiltz

FOREIGN LANGUAGE

Mrs. Jackie Gaedtke

Mrs. Toni Tourdot

**MUSIC** 

Mr. Corey Colburn (Choir)

Mr. Jon Marin (Band)

PHY. ED

Mrs. Taylor Hudzinski-Pike

Mrs. Shirley Derleth

Mr. John Larson

**SCIENCE** 

Mrs. Kyla Dotter

Mr. Jim Krueger

Mrs. Brianna Schield

SOCIAL STUDIES

Mr. Jeremy Baalke

Mrs. Erin Marvin

Mr. Aaron Wickman

**PARAPROFESSIONALS** 

Mrs. Jill Lilek

Mrs. Annette Steltenphol

Mrs. Jade Lear

Mrs. Shelly Kahle

Mrs. Penny Wanta

Mrs. Lynn Eskola

Ms. Christine Meinheit

ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION

Mrs. Amanda Johnson

**GUIDANCE** 

Mr. Dan Reiter

**DIRECTOR OF CURRICULUM & INSTRUCTION** 

Mrs. Julie Oehmichen

# **BUILDING & GROUNDS**

Mr. Arland Wingate

# **SPECIAL ED DIRECTOR**

Mrs. Wendra Simonis

# **DIRECTOR OF FOOD SERVICES**

Mr. Dustin Tessmer, Taher Food Service Director

# **SPECIAL ED SECRETARY**

Mrs. Traci Swan

### 2021-22 CLASS ADVISORS

#### **Class of 2022**

\*Mr. Stromberg – Rm 285 Mr. Neu - Rm 283 Mrs. Dotter - Rm 258 Mr. Wickman - Rm 295

### **Class of 2024**

\*Mr. Colburn – Rm 324 Mrs. Dallman – Rm 278 Mrs. Schroder– Rm 267 Mr. Reiter – Rm 215

#### Class of 2023

\*Mrs. Gaedtke – Rm 277 Mr. Baalke – Rm 293 Mr. Krueger – Rm 256 Mrs. Marvin – Rm 296

### **Class of 2025**

\*Mr. Schroder– Rm 238 Mr. Hernandez – Rm 294 Mrs. Johnson – Rm 265 Mr. Schiltz – Rm 231

### 2021-22 CLASS OFFICERS

### **Class of 2022:**

President - Kaleigh Seliskar Vice President - Amalie Kurth Secretary - Maura Koth Treasurer - Emily Lacina

### **Class of 2024:**

President - Arawen Alberg Vice President - Madilyn Baumann Secretary - Alexandra Scherta Treasurer - Nadia Schoone

### **Class of 2023:**

President - Kyle Norman Vice President - Zachary Hanse Secretary - Serena Reinke Treasurer - Joseph Jones

### **Class of 2025:**

President - Ella Hilgendorf Vice President - Jack Amelse Secretary - Cedar Hoffman Treasurer - Caylie Swan

### 2021-22 STUDENT COUNCIL EXECUTIVE BOARD

President - TBD
Vice President - TBD
Secretary - TBD
Treasurer - TBD
Publicist - TBD

Recruitment/Membership Development - TBD